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STATE OF MARYLAND 
CRITICAL AREA COMMISSION 

CHESAPEAKE AND ATLANTIC COASTAL BAYS 

1804 West Street, Suite 100, Annapolis, Maryland 21401  (410) 260-3460 
dnr.maryland.gov/criticalarea/  TTY users call via the Maryland Relay Service 

January 14, 2024 

Ms. Sterling Seay 
Anne Arundel County Zoning Division 
2664 Riva Road, MS 6301 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 

Re: Bahen - 1015 Magothy Avenue Variance (2024-0101-V) 

Dear Ms. Seay, 

Thank you for providing information on the above-referenced variance request to retain an 
unpermitted patio and retaining wall within the Critical Area Buffer. The 0.81-acre property is 
located within the Critical Area on lands designated as both Limited Development Area (LDA) 
and Resource Conservation Area (RCA). The lot coverage on this parcel totals 4,225 square feet 
all within the LDA, of which the 700 square foot patio with retaining wall and an outdoor 
fireplace is located entirely within the Critical 
buffer. The parcel is already improved with a primary dwelling with an attached porch, 
walkways, and riparian access. The attached porch was authorized through a variance in 2017 to 
the prior property owners.  

The application materials indicate that the patio and retaining wall provide slope stabilization 
and erosion control. A patio with a fireplace is not a slope stabilization measure and increased 
impacts and lot coverage on steep slopes can actually cause and exacerbate erosive conditions. 
The installation of appropriate slope stabilization methods, such as a standalone retaining wall, is 
a more appropriate method of addressing slope erosion issues.  

Variance 

an applicant has satisfied the burden to prove that the request meets each and every one of the 
variance standards under COMAR 27.01.12, including the standard of unwarranted hardship. 
Furthermore, State law establishes the presumption that a proposed activity for which a Critical 
Area variance is requested does not conform to the purpose and intent of the Critical Area law 



 
applicant has overcome this presumption, based on the competent and substantial evidence 
presented from the applicant.   

This office opposes the Buffer variance to retain the patio and fireplace, as the request fails to 
meet six of the seven Critical Area variance standards as described below.  

Variance Standards 

1. Due to special features of the site or special conditions or circumstances peculiar to the 

result in an unwarranted hardship to the applicant;  

Based on the information provided, denying this variance request would not result in an 
unwarranted hardship.  

applicant shall be denied reasonable and significant use of the entire parcel or lot. The 
property is currently developed with a house with driveway, riparian access, and an attached 
porch, which was previously permitted through a variance. Allowing the applicant to retain 
an unpermitted patio in the Buffer does not meet the standard of unwarranted hardship, as the 
applicant already has reasonable and significant use of the lot with the existing house and 
associated development. Therefore, if the request for the unpermitted patio and fireplace 
were to be denied, the applicant would still have reasonable and significant use of the entire 
lot or parcel, and the ability to employ other proper methods to appropriately stabilize a 
slope. 

2. A literal interpretation of the local Critical Area program would deprive the applicant of a 
use of land or a structure permitted to others in accordance with the provisions of the local 
Critical Area program;  

Denial of this request would not deprive the applicant the use of the land or structure 
permitted to others in the Critical Area.  

On the contrary, approving a variance to allow unpermitted non-water dependent 
improvements in the Buffer to remain is not a right commonly enjoyed by other, similar 

right to construct non-water dependent improvements inside of the Buffer on steep slopes per 
 

This lot was developed with the current house, driveway and riparian access. Furthermore, 
the previous owners were granted a variance to Critical Area law to construct a porch within 
the Buffer, allowing present and future property owners a reasonable outdoor amenity. Based 

authorized to have a patio and fireplace in the Buffer.  



 
3. The granting of the variance would not confer upon the applicant any special privilege that 

would be denied by the local Critical Area program to other lands or structures in 
accordance with the provisions of any local Critical Area program;  

The granting of this variance would confer a special privilege upon the applicant. The Anne 
Arundel County Code and the Critical Area regulations place strict limits on disturbance to 
the Critical Area Buffer in order to meet the goals of the Critical Area law. Approval of this 
variance would grant the applicant a special privilege that would be denied to others within 
the Critical Area, as no individual is permitted to construct non-water dependent 
improvements (a patio and fireplace) in the Buffer. This office has previously and 
consistently opposed similar variance requests from others; therefore, granting this 

ilege denied to 
others. 

4. The variance request is not based upon conditions or circumstances that are the result of 
actions by the applicant; 

The applicant constructed a patio and retaining wall within the Buffer without permits. The 
applicant already has reasonable and significant use of their lot with outdoor amenities, such 
as a permitted porch. The applicant can employ standard slope stabilization measures on this 
site, such as a permitted, standalone retaining wall. In short, this request is based on actions 

Therefore, this request should be denied. 

5. The variance request does not arise from any conforming or nonconforming condition on any 
neighboring property; 

Based on the information provided, it appears that this variance request is not the result of 
any conforming or nonconforming condition on any neighboring property. 

6. The granting of the variance would not adversely affect water quality or adversely impact 
 

This after-the-fact variance request does adversely affect water quality and impact fish, 
wildlife, and plant habitat within the Critical Area.  

The Critical Area law and regulations are designed to foster more sensitive development for 
shoreline areas to minimize damage to water quality and habitat. The unpermitted patio and 
outdoor fireplace, within the Buffer and on steep slopes, increases runoff and erosion 
capacity, which carries with it pollutants that will negatively impact the water quality of 
Deep Creek, a tributary to the Magothy River and Chesapeake Bay.  

7. The granting of the variance would be in harmony with the general spirit and intent of the 
Critical Area law, the regulations in this subtitle, and the local Critical Area program.  



 
Ecologically sensitive areas such as the Critical Area Buffer and steep slopes within the LDA 

program because of their importance in meeting the goals of the Critical Area law 

The goals of the Critical Area law are to: 

  
  
 

 

Granting a variance to allow for the retention of an unpermitted patio and outdoor fireplace 
within the Critical Area Buffer that results in increased runoff into Deep Creek and Magothy 
River, when the lot has already been improved with the addition of a permitted attached 
porch, would not be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Critical Area law and would 
be contrary to the goals of the Critical Area law.  

In requesting a variance, the applicant bears the burden of demonstrating that each and every one 
of the variance standards have been met, including the standard of unwarranted hardship. The 
applicant has failed to meet six of the seven variance standards as described above; therefore, we 
oppose this variance. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments. Please include this letter of opposition in 
your file and submit it as part of the record for this variance. Also, please notify the Commission 
in writing of the decision made in this case. If you have any questions about these comments, 
please contact me at (410)-260-3462 or jamileh.soueidan@maryland.gov. 

Sincerely, 

 
Jamileh Soueidan 
Natural Resources Planner 

cc: Jennifer Esposito, CAC 
Nick Kelly, CAC 
Emily Vainieri, Office of the Attorney General 
Kelly Krinetz, Anne Arundel County 
Adam Brown, Anne Arundel County 

File: AA 0329 - 24 












